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El Centro Elementary 
School District 
GOVERN ING BOARD: PATRICIA DUNNAM CHUCK FISHER GEORGE McFADDIN MICHAEL MINNIX FRANCES A. TERRAZAS 

OISTRlCT ADMINJSTRATION: JON L<:DOUX, SUPERINTENDENT RUBEN CASTRO, ASSOCIATE SUPERINTENDENT KRISTY CURRY, ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT 

July 27, 2018 

Linda Sawin 
California School Finance Authority 
300 S. Spring Street, Suite 8500 
Los Angeles, CA 90013 

Re: Imagine Schools at Imperial Va lley 
Certifi cation of Good Standing 

Dear Ms. Sawin : 

We send th is correspondence to provide your office with further information as to Imagine 
Schools at Imperial Valley's ("ISIV") standing with its authorizer, t he El Centro Elementary 
School District ("District"). The District continues to believe it accurately responded to the 
inquiry from your office regarding ISIV's standing, and ISIV remains not in good standing 
with the District to date . I SIV also no longer has an active charter, as it was not renewed by 
the District's governing board and expired by its own terms of June 30, 2018. Finally, and as 
explained further herein, the faciliti es arrangement for which ISIV is now seeking Public 
Charter School Grant funding is one of the bases for denial. 

On January 31, 2018, the District denied I SIV's renewal petition because it had not complied 
with the Cha rter Schools Act over the prior term, and neither did its renewal petition. The 
Distri ct Board's findings were grave and substantia l, and included: 

• ISIV did not meet academic performance criteria necessary for renewal. 

• Petitioners operated ISIV in a state of operational chaos with high turnover. 

• ISIV does not currently employ teachers with credentials required by law t o serve 
English Learners. 

• ISIV contracts with Imagine School 's parent company in Virginia under grossly inflated 
contracts that are fraught with conflicts of interest, including the facilities arrangement 
characterized as a " lease" and entered into by financially interested parties. 

(See District Staff Report, dated January 31, 20 18, attached as Exhibit 1.) 

ISIV appealed the District's decision to the Imperial County Board of Education ("ICBOE"), 
and the ICBOE did not take action on the appeal. I SIV subsequently appealed to the State 
Board of Education ("SBE") , and the SBE w ill hear the appeal on September 6-7, 2018. 

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

1256 Broadway St. E l Centro, CA 92243 Phone (760) 352 -5712 Fax (760) 352- 7237 Web: ecesd.org 















































































The Honorable Chairman John Chiang 

California School Finance Authority 

915 Capitol Mall, Ste. 101 

Sacramento CA 95814 

Dear Mr. Chiang: 

August 28, 2018 

We are writing to appeal the board's denial to release the balance of the SB 740 funds to our school due 

to an inaccurate report by El Centro Elementary School District, leading to an ineligibility determination 

by the CSFA board. 

As the school has done every year since 2011, Imagine Schools applied for and received funding through 

the program from the California School Finance Authority (CSFA) in June of 2017 and received the first 

installment in December of 2017. 

The charter renewal petition for Imagine Schools' 2018-2023 term is currently pending before the State 

Board of Education. While Imagine Schools submitted the application for renewal to the El Centro 

Elementary School District (ECESD) in October 2017, we did not receive a Notice of Concern or Notice of 

Violation from the District during the 2017-2018 school year, nor did the District otherwise inform 

Imagine that it was out of compliance with its then-current charter petition during the 2017-2018 school 

year. 

On March 7, 2018, the District stated on a mid-year CSFA form that Imagine was not in good standing for 

the 2017-2018 funding round and was not in compliance with the terms of its charter based simply on 

the grounds that "Board denied renewal petition." This was the only time during the 2017-2018 school 

year that the District indicated Imagine was not in good standing under the charter petition that was 

effective during 2017-2018. Moreover, 'imagine Schools continued to operate and serve students 

through the entire 2017-2018 school year. 

When we received the letter from CSFA on March 16th telling us that we were ineligible based on 

ECESD's entry on the midyear form, we immediately began contacting both the district and CSFA. Our 

initial understanding through conversations with staff was that this is a common misunderstanding by 

districts, and as directed by the March 16th letter, we were to cure the situation directly with the 

district. 

Imagine Schools at Imperial Valley 
1150 Imperial Ave., El Centro, CA 92243 

Ph. 760-592-7250 Fx. 760-592-7251 



On April 12, 2018, Imagine sent the District Superintendent an email attempting to resolve this apparent 

misunderstanding related to lmagine's standing during the 2017-2018 school year. Superintendent 

LeDoux responded by claiming that he filled out the form based on direction from CSFA and that he 

would look into it and get back to Imagine soon. Unfortunately, lmagine's subsequent attempts to work 

with the District were unsuccessful. Imagine asked Superintendent LeDoux to provide evidence or 

documentation establishing that Imagine was not in compliance or in good standing during the 2017-

2018 school year but the District did not respond to lmagine's request, and Superintendent LeDoux did 

not return lmagine's telephone calls. Instead, Mr. LeDoux's lawyer directed Imagine to cease 

communications and appeal directly to CSFA. 

4 CCR§ 10170.3(f) provides that to be eligible to receive SB 740 funds, among other things, the charter 

school must be "in good standing with its chartering authority and is in compliance with the terms of its 

charter at the time of application submission, and without interruption throughout the term of the 

grant." 4 CCR§ 10170.3(f) further provides, "The Authority will rely on information from the chartering 

authority regarding the school's good standing and compliance with the terms of its charter. Charter 

schools may appeal any response by the chartering authority's staff directly to the chartering authority's 

governing board. It shall be the charter school's responsibility, and not the Authority's, to ensure that 

the good standing and compliance response letter is received by the stated deadline." 

Although the Regulations do not define "good standing," it is clear that the relevant timeframe within 

which the charter must be in "good standing" with its authorizer is the term of the grant (here the 2017-

18 grant), not any future school years. Thus, the District's denial of lmagine's charter renewal, which 

would take effect after its then-current charter expires, and be in place for the 2018-19 school year and 

forward, cannot rationally support a certification that Imagine was not in good standing or in 

compliance with the terms of the charter in effect for 2017- 18. 

This position is further supported by the fact that when Imagine requested clarification from the District, 

the District did not claim that its failure to confirm the school's good standing was based on issues 

relating to lmagine's charter petition in effect in 2017-2018. Instead, the District Superintendent claimed 

he simply filled out the form the way CSFA instructed him to do so 

As the District's notification of lmagine's standing was made in error and in a manner inconsistent with 

the intent and language of the Regulations, and there is no evidence to support the District's statement 

that Imagine is not in good standing under its current charter through the 2017-2018 school year, we 

believe Imagine remains eligible for SB 740 funds for the 2017-2018 school year under Education Code 

Section 47614.5. 

Imagine Schools at Imperial Valley 
1150 Imperial Ave., El Centro, CA 92243 

Ph. 760-592-7250 Fx. 760-592-7251 



We would respectfully request that CSFA exercise its broad authority to grant an exception to our 

appeal given the unique circumstances in this case. The ineligibility determination, if sustained, would 

result in a loss of approximately $400,000 in funding to Imagine for the current school year that has 

already concluded. Denying funds that were already budgeted for would have a significant impact on 

the school. 

Principal 

Imagine Schools at Imperial Valley 
1150 Imperial Ave., El Centro, CA 92243 

Ph. 760-592-7250 Fx. 760-592-7251 
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